Questions & Answers from Rock Island Industry Day

Question 1:  What is a “contemplation letter”?
Answer:  As requirements are identified, the PCO will issue a Contemplation Letter (CL) to those contractors who have been issued an IDIQ contract for that component.  The CL is a letter Request for Proposal (RFP).  For the majority of CL’s we intend to only ask for price and schedule; however, we have the right to ask for past performance or technical again.  

Question 2:  For W52P1J-08-R-0088 a closing date of 2/28/09 is listed.  Is this Correct?

Answer:  No, as stated at the RICC Industry Day the closing dates for each CLIN will be set forth in the formal RFP.

Question 3:  For RFP W15QKN-09-R-0364, a closing date of 2/20/09 is listed.  Is this correct?  

Answer:  No, a closing date will be established when the formal solicitation is issued.
Question 4:  Is it possible to obtain a sample of the parachutes themselves?

Answer:  No.  Technical Data Packages are provided instead.

Question 5:  What is your position / goal for Service – Disabled Veteran – Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) participation?

Answer:  The Rock Island & Picatinny solicitations are a best value SBSA.  As such, Small Business utilization is not an evaluation factor for this solicitation.  The solicitations are best value SBSA.  SB subcontracting plans are not required if SB.  Bottom Line:  SDVOSB position / goal is not applicable for these RFPs.

Question 6:  Would PCO consider other than progress payments (i.e., milestone payments)

Answer:  Yes, on a case by case basis, e.g., performance based payments.

Question 7:  Need to list web links for registering to access Ammunition Data Cards (ADC), Worldwide Ammunition Repository (WARP), Army Electronic Product Support.  Contractors will need ammunition manufacturing ID & be listed in manufacturing handbook.

Answer: WARP access and Manufacturing ID instructions are within the ADC SOW and provides website.  Links and basic instructions are found in the ADC SOW Clause.

Question 8: On page 2 of the draft solicitation, 6 items do not have NSN’s.  Why?

Answer:  We are working on obtaining NSN information for all components.  
Question 9:  Reference Section C, TDP Engineering Exceptions.   Will Distribution Statement C, D or F be required to build the sample? If so, what is the time-line for receiving the exceptions, i.e. what “required paperwork” is required & when is it due? Of concern here is pricing. The exception could significantly impact the price. Also if the required work is delayed processing, time remaining to build the sample (with org exception) will be inadequate. 
Answer: All components must be manufactured in accordance with respective certified technical data package.  Specific information on obtaining copies of the TDPs is set forth in the pre-solicitation synopsis.
Question 10: Can the CLIN be staggered by type of item, i.e., fin assembly or parachutes? 

Answer: See Answers to Question(s) 2 & 3.
Question 11: The “sample” requirement would benefit greatly from having staggered deliveries, i.e. four “fin assembly” samples on 1 March would be far more challenging than one CLIN (sample) at 20 to 30 days intervals.

Answer: There is no sample requirement stated in the solicitation. 

Question 12: These are foundry type parts, castings, forgings, etc. Multiple small business supplies seem inefficient. The tool up and develop a process to meet extensive and stringent technical and business requirements is expensive! What is the logic and theory?
Answer: Shell body production is a specialized process that does provide extensive equipment. These have been competed against SBs in the past and we are always looking for new suppliers familiar with the casting/forging process. PM CAS wants to foster competition to the max extent possible. Every supplier needs to make business decisions to enter any new market. There are certain components where we need extra capacity. 

Question 13: What is the difference between the current plan to qualify suppliers under the old Qualified Suppliers List (QSL) program? That program was chartered in 2001. 

Answer:   The QSL will not be utilized for this RFP.  Current plans are to qualify suppliers based on best value criteria. 

Question 14: Under the QSL program vendors were added as qualified sources, but not necessarily awarded a contract.

Answer: It is the Government’s intent to award at least (2) or more IDIQs utilizing best value practices.   

Question 15: Must the component be Berry Compliant and made in the USA?

Answer: Yes, when applicable.
Question 16: Will previous prices be published or available to this RFP. 
Answer: A formal Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request must be submitted.
Question 17: Can we obtain a list of Qualified Products List (QPL) products you will still be ordering over the next few years?

Answer: The items listed in the draft RFPs are our current best estimates of needed products and quantities for the 10 year period. 

 Question 18: Explain the pre-qualifying process and required actions for suppliers?
Answer:   In order to bid on future work, an Offeror must submit a separate proposal for each contract line item (CLIN).  At least two offerors will receive a base contract, based on the best value practices / criteria described in Section L and Section M of the RFPs.  
Question 19: Comment was made that there are two contracting offices, 2 legal offices, 2 industrial bases. I thought LCMC was to make one community. Why two industrial bases for common items and how are they different?

Answer: Each organization is bound by its own internal policies and procedures.
Question 20: How can one’s price be good for a year when material prices change so much from month to month?

Answer: Material fluctuations need to be considered and taken into account when developing your offered price.

Question 21: What are the Government’s expectations about “insertion of new technology” (L.3.1.1g)?  The ECP process is not changed and therefore seems redundant to describe our process as a requirement.

Answer: Insertion of a new technology is a continuous process improvement initiative for suppliers that have plans and can show how they have inserted technology into their processes.  They will be given credit for their efforts and continuous improvement business practices.  
Question 22: Confusion on the chart indicating Spin Brake MPTS f/ M485 and Canister MPTS f/ M485. Both have the same quantity of $440.5K and indicate the same TDP Dwg # 9213709.  Please clarify. 

Answer: In the situation on the Spin Brake and Canister MPTS for the M485 Projectile, we combined the different components in one TDPL package list. The formal RFP will be clarified on which individual components are to be supplied.
Question 23: Is the TDP package that was sent out earlier going to be updated or will we receive another CD with the Engineering changes?

Answer: Any changes to the TDP will be posted as an amendment to the solicitation.  No new CD’s will be issued. 

Question 24: Requested TDP for M231, Container which was Distribution Level F, but did not receive.  How can I obtain that TDP?
Answer:  If the contractor does not meet the requirements identified in the Presolicitation Synopsis to obtain a copy of TDP for Distribution F (i.e. past producer or capability), site visits by the US Government may be required in order to assess the capability to satisfy requirements.
Question 25: Please give a definition of Best Value.  Rock Island and Picatinny differ.

Answer: The Best Value approach is defined in each solicitation.  
Question 26: Do individual detailed rework procedures need to be submitted for each possible rework item or can a generic rework procedure be submitted?

Answer: Each individual procedure must be submitted for review and approval.  

Question 27: Can a Foreign National come to the US and view the CD Drawings in preparation of a proposal with a company for which he is involved?  The Foreign National will not take any data out of the US.

Answer: It is still considered an export of information if a foreign national learns something and then takes that knowledge back to another country.  The information would first have to be approved for disclosure to that country and any export considerations addressed.

Question 28: Can the TDP be shared with our subsidiary in Mexico?

Answer:  If a disclosure determination has been made regarding the release of information to a company, the restrictions should be clearly stated in the contract or release documentation.  Release to a subsidiary may or may not be authorized dependent upon whether it was known that the subsidiary would be performing work on the project, what the distribution statement is on the TDP, who at the subsidiary will need to receive the TDP, what their nationality is, etc.  If the disclosure provisions/restrictions are not clearly stated, go back to the contracting agency for a determination prior to releasing the information.

Question 29: How do prices in the proposal compare to the proposal prices for delivery orders (for FY09)? Are delivery order prices limited by prices provided in the initial proposal (for FY09)?

Answer:  The prices provided in response to the solicitation via the Price Matrix are binding for Ordering Period 1 (FY09).  Therefore, any delivery orders issued during Ordering Period 1 will reflect the prices as provided via the Price Matrix.
Question 30: Can labor be from Mexico for the products as long as all raw materials are Berry compliant?
Answer: The requirement that the end item be produced in the US and Canada can extend to labor to produce the end item.  The solicitation will identify which items must be produced within the US or Canada.   

Does the NTIB (Section A) apply to all, such as suppliers and as well as the companies providing the end product?  Understand the end product must be manufactured in the United States and Canada sources, but what about the components or raw materials that will be purchased / subcontracted? 

Answer:  The NTIB requirement can extend to components and raw materials.  The solicitation will identify any components that must be produced within the NTIB and also any raw materials that must be acquired from the US or Canada.  
Question 31: Can a small business sub-contract to a large business for some portion of the contract? If a small business can sub-contract to a large business, what are the restrictions?

Answer: Yes, however, there are limitations on sub-contracting – See FAR 52.219-14, Limitations on Subcontracting.

Question 32: What are the Government’s criteria to award contracts to multiple contractors?

Answer:  In accordance with Section L&M of the RFP, the USG plans to make (2) or more IDIQ awards to qualified offerors. For award of Delivery Orders the Government’s intent on will be set forth in the Letter of Contemplation.
Question 33: Because there is no requirement to deliver unless there are delivery orders, is there a requirement for a successful offeror to remain an IDIQ contractor for the full 10 years?

Answer:  No.  The contractor can remain in the pool of eligible offerors; however, it is the contractor’s discretion to bid on individual contemplation letters.
Question 34: Can we have history for each component listed, such as current manufacturer or cost of each component?
Answer:  The names of previous manufacturer can be provided; however, requests for cost information must be submitted via a FOIA. 

Question 35: If multiple vendors are to be qualified by an issuance of an IDIQ contract, are we to assume that minimal quantities are to be quoted on the original RFPs?

Answer:  For the RICC solicitation, offerors are required to fill our Attachment 0025 in it’s entirety for the items the offeror intends to submit proposals.
Question 36: What incentive is there for a business to invest in equipment and tooling if you are only guaranteed a portion of the first year quantity?  This investment must be amortized over the proportional quantity in the first year yielding higher prices to the Government.  In today’s economic environment, banks will not permit the use of a five year contract commitment under this scenario.  

What incentive is there to incorporate new technology?  These are the burdens that contractors can potentially face. 1) Cost is entirely born by the contractor. 2) Contractor takes all the risk. 3) Deprives the government of the latest technology, to deliver the highest quality products to the war fighter. 
Answer:  There is no guarantee of any first year quantity.  It is strictly a contractor’s business decision. 
Question 37: Will the Government be looking to prequalify a specific number of contractors?

Answer:  Minimum of 2 awards for each component.
Question 38: How many KOR’s are contemplated for each item? We know economics make it vary for each item…..at least 2? Could we make two or three items set aside for SDVOSB? Probability of a minimum quantity and a maximum quantity met in one year?  Need to consider capacity of each contractor?

Answer:  We plan to award a minimum of two (2) awards for each component.  There are no provisions for SDVOSB in either the RICC or the JM&L LCMC RFPs.  The contractor’s capacity is discussed in Sections L&M.
Question 39: Was any consideration given to the fact that reconsidering awardees on a year basis would result in a higher price? Since startup costs must be spread over one year instead of five years. This is true for some industries that have high costs up front.
Answer:  Yes.  However we believe allowing contractors an opportunity to compete on an annual basis is more beneficial then being restricted from competition for a five year period.   
Question 40: Are the quantities listed for the M231 and M232A1 containers suggesting on average 460,000 and 480,000 containers per year correct? The USG has never purchased at these levels in the history of the program. Is it possible that these quantities represent the number of charges and not the number of containers?

Answer:  Yes, the estimated quantities for containers are correct.
Question 41: Does the Buy American Act apply to every component?

Answer:  Yes, see FAR 52.225-1.
Question 42: Delivery orders awarded within 60 days- are these for one year at a time? Would you consider allowing more lead time for the suppliers to come up with the initial proposals? We typically have teams of people to think through and write good proposals that would get us the work. More time will allow us to do a complete feasibility study. 

Answer:  Award of Delivery Orders will be achieved through issuance on Contemplation Letters.  The CLs will ask for price and schedule only, unless other factors such as past performance would prove meaningful.
Question 43: Is the past performance section specifically related to past performance on government contract work only? If so, how is a company rated without government past performance?

Answer:  No, Past performance must be submitted for any relevant / recent contract.  An offeror without a record of relevant past performance or for whom information on past performance is not available will not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably on past performance, therefore, giving them a rating of neutral past performance risk.
Question 44: If you already have a part on contract does this new contract start after the current one is done or is it a separate order?

Answer:   Cannot be determined at this time.  It will be on a case by case basis.
Question 45: Will the FOB delivery points be defined for Bid Point/Delivery items beyond year one?

Answer: The FOB Delivery Points will be identified in each CL.

Question 46: Who has the current contracts? Are they large businesses? What is the estimated total value of these acquisitions? 

Answer:  These components have historically been produced by small businesses.  The estimated quantity for each component is provided in the respective solicitations.  The estimated total value of the acquisitions will not be disclosed.  
Question 47: What would be the minimum award dollars and volume and what size of small business would you expect to qualify? Do we need to have capacity on the floor to produce these parts or can the bid include expansion plans based on the award?

Answer: Any qualified small business within the appropriate NAICS may submit a proposal.  Offerors are not required to have existing capacity to produce these parts, rather expansion plans can be explained as part of your proposal.  The minimum guarantee is still being evaluated.  It will be identified in the solicitation.
Question 48: What exactly does the Army mean by "Critical Safety Characteristics" and "Safety Critical Characteristics" as mentioned in L.3.1.2; L.3.1.2.a; L.3.12.b on pages 65 and 66?  What is their definition?  Is there a MIL Standard that defines it?
 Answer:  Per MIL-STD-1916, a Critical Characteristic is defined as a characteristic that judgment and experience indicate must be met to avoid hazardous or unsafe conditions for individuals using, maintaining, or depending upon the product; or that judgment and experience indicate must be met to assure performance of the tactical function of a major item such as a ship, aircraft, tank, missile, or space vehicle. Included in the definition of Critical Characteristics are Safety Critical Characteristics as well.

 All critical characteristics are associated with safety critical performance.

Beyond MIL-STD-1916, the definition also relies upon the contractor to identify characteristics that In addition to critical characteristics defined in the government’s technical data (drawings, specifications, etc.), the contractor shall also identify and document in their contractor developed technical data all known material, component, subassembly and assembly characteristics whose non-conformances would likely result in hazardous or unsafe conditions for individuals using, maintaining or depending upon the product.  All additional critical characteristics identified by the contractor shall comply with the critical characteristic requirements of the technical data package, supplemented herein. The Critical Item Characteristic List (CICL) review process shall be included in the CCC Plan. The contractor's additional critical characteristics shall be classified in accordance with guidance located at https://qa.pica.army.mil/QAW/qaw_p/safety_policy.htm and shall be submitted to and approved by the PCO prior to production (DI-SAFT-80970A).   If you are unable to access the above mentioned website, contact the Contract Specialist or PQM and they will provide the information upon request.
An item that is essential to weapon system performance or operation, or the preservation of life or safety of operating personnel, as determined by the military services.
Items whose failure could have catastrophic or critical safety consequences (Category I or II per MIL-STD-882).
   I - Catastrophic – Could result in death, permanent total disability, loss exceeding $1M, or irreversible severe environmental damage that violates law or regulation.

   II – Critical – Could result in permanent partial disability, injuries or occupational illness that may result in hospitalization of at least 3 personnel, loss exceeding $200K but less than $1M, or reversible environmental damage causing a violation of law or regulation.
Question 49: The draft RFP, section L.3.1.1 Manufacturing Plan; sub para d and also Section M.3.2.1 d make reference to "Critical Process Areas".  Are "Critical Process" the same as "Critical Processes Area”?   

Answer: This should be interpreted as multiple forms of Critical Processes.  More than one Critical Process in more than one “area” of the manufacturing process equates to Critical Process Areas.
Question 50: Each offeror must submit prices for 10 years for each component in which they are interested.  The solicitation does not contain a material and/or labor escalation clause.  It is assumed that the resultant multiple IDIQ contracts will include the quoted prices for all ten years.  My experience with IDIQ contracts is that the contracting officer can issue firm delivery orders without discussions with the prime contractor based on prices contained in the contract.  The solicitation and resultant contract provides for competitive procurement of component requirements as they occur.  Will this competition be based on a new price competition or based on existing contractual prices?  If it is based on a new price competition, what is the need for pricing years 2 thru 10 under subject solicitation?  Take the case of two firms being awarded IDIQ contracts for the M24 Fin Assy.  Company A has a contractual unit price of $17 and Company B has a contractual unit price of $18 for year 2.  In year 2 due to material and/or labor rate increases, Company A bids $18.50 and Company B bids $18.25.  All other evaluation factors being equal, to which firm is the award made and at what price?
Answer: This question will be addressed after the Picatinny Industry Day.
Question 51: ACC, JM&LCC, Picatinny Arsenal has received and evaluating offers on two separate solicitations, one unrestricted and the second restricted to small business firms for 81mm Fin Assemblies. Both contracts will be for a basic year and 4 option years.  When the awards are made by Picatinny and ASC under subject solicitation, there is a definite possibility of the Government having 4 contracts, 2 at Picatinny and 2 at ASC. It is highly unusual for two separate Army procurement activities procuring the identical item/requirement.  If the yearly requirements are insufficient to make multiple awards.  Even at minimum sustaining rates, who and how will the award decision(s) be made? 

Answer: At the time the requirement is identified, PM-CAS will make this determination.
Question 52: Both ASC and Picatinny under Solicitations W52P1J-08-R-0088 and W15QKN-09-R-0364 are procuring items which have historically been procured as small business set-asides.  Other artillery and mortar components such as Projectile Assy and Fuzes have been historically been procured on an unrestricted basis.  Does the Army plan to issue unrestricted 10 year solicitations for these components? 

Answer: The acquisition strategy for these items is currently under development.
Question 53: Page 2 of 82: The CLIN list numbering does not match the CLINs on pages 6 – 8 of 82.
Answer: The Section A narrative will be revised to match the CLINs.  
Question 54: Page 2 of 82: Since there are 6 parachute CLINs, it is recommended that the “TBD” closing dates be sufficiently separate in time to facilitate submitting high quality proposals for two or more from the same company. 

Answer: It is our intent to evaluate and award all items within a 3 month period.
Question 55: Page 41 of 82: Reference is made to “ES6031” at the end of paragraph I-105 for the values for the “FILL-INS 1-5”.  ES6031 does not seem to match this reference since it has only two inserts and paragraph I-105 has three additional inserts. 

Answer: This will be corrected in the formal solicitation.
Question 56: Page 42 of 82: Paragraph I-108(b) makes reference to a maximum and minimum order to be listed in the Schedule. The draft RFP does not contain a “Schedule” nor a minimum order quantity.

Answer:  The formal RFPs will contain a minimum order. 
Question 57: Page 65 of 82: Paragraph L.3.1.1.b makes reference to “…production forecasts as stated in the Solicitation …”.  The draft RFP does not contain any production forecasts. 

Answer: Remove "production forecasts as stated in the solicitation" and replace with "monthly maximum capacity based on single shift without additional facilities, equipment and tooling at the prime and subcontractors".
Question 58: Page 65 of 82: paragraph L.3.1.1.f requires maximum capacity information and makes reference to “required production delivery rates/schedule….” The draft RFP does not contain a production delivery rate so what assumptions should be made in order to complete this requirement in the solicitation response?

Answer: Remove "required production delivery rates/schedule" and replace with "prime and subcontractor indicated monthly maximum capacity based on single shift".

Question 59: Page 66 of 82: paragraph L.3.1.3.(c) requires an Integrated Master Schedule to be part of the Subfactor 3 Management Plan. This plan is to “satisfy the indicated delivery schedule…..” There is no delivery schedule in the draft RFP and there is no indication of the time to be allowed for FAT and the subsequent initial delivery.  What assumptions should be made regarding FAT schedule, orders and delivery schedule in order to prepare the required Integrated Master Schedule in the proposal?

Answer: Remove "indicated delivery schedule" and replace with "contractors single shift, monthly maximum production schedule". 

FAT and delivery schedule will be set forth for each CLIN in the formal RFP.
Question 60:  Is it acceptable for a dealer to be the prime contractor with the bid based on the capabilities of the sub-contractor?

Reference the current trend of “teaming” to meet the goal for Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) set asides.  Can the SDVOSB Dealer be the prime with all manufacturing sub-contracted to a viable, experience Government contractor?

Answer:   Yes; however, as a dealer you must consider the impact of the nonmanufacturer rule for this small business set-aside solicitation.  Federal Acquisition Regulation clause 52.219-14, Limitations on Subcontracting, doesn't apply to nonmanufacturers.  On the other hand, the nonmanufacturer rule (FAR 19.001 and 13 CFR 121.406)) does apply.  As a nonmanufacturer you must be a small business under the applicable size standard and shall provide either its own product or that of another domestic small business manufacturing or processing concern.   

